REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

The Humboldt County Regional Planning Commission Meeting was held on
December 10, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. in the County Meeting room of the Humboldt County
Courthouse located at Fifty West Fifth Street, Winnemucca, Nevada.

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT COMMISSIONERS ABSENT
Pam Wickkiser Ray Olsen Bob Edwards

Stephen Nye Richard Brown

Joyce Cox - Walter Lee

STAFF PRESENT LEGAL COUNSEL
Betty Lawrence Dana Toth (Nbge present)

PUBLIC PRESENT <\\ \\/

Tami Vetter Jhona Be > ~John Milton

John Bell Liani \
\

Ray called the meeting to order at,5‘8Q’p rm ked if there were any concemns with the
November 12, 2009 minutes and Agkeg for a ion. Stephen motioned to approve the
minutes for November 12, 2009; se nMy{\n; Motion passed unanimously. Ray asked if
there were any postponeme he\ade da items. Betty reported there were no
postponements. ’Q N

II. CONSENT AGEND |§CH§SIGT&ACTION

Ray read the Con Ag@r?d(a‘eﬁcnptlon and process. He then read the following
agenda items: w P

A. PH-09-05 Ilcatlon submitted by Desert Mountain Surveying on behalf of
John and éBe e property located along the west boundary of Highway 8B in
Parad| ley‘mfo\4 arcels; assessor’s parcel #04-342-01, 04-531-23, &04-531-24.

A sﬁQsequent parcel map application submitted by Desert Mountain Surveying
(’Fialf» of Wand Johna Bell to divide property located along the west boundary of
radise Valley into 4 lots; assessor’s parcel #04-342-01, 04-531-23 & a

there wa one in the public wished to pull an item down There was no response Ray
then brought the items back to the board and asked for a motion. Pam motioned to approve
PH-09-05 and PH-09-06; second by Walter. Motion passed unanimously. Ray then asked
Betty to let the applicant know what happened. Betty told Milton that she would get a letter

out. (5:30:53)

lIl. PUBLIC HEARING/DISCUSSION & ACTION-None




RPC Minutes

12-10-09 Meeting
Page 2

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTARY-None

Ray asked if anyone present wished to address the board. There were no comments.

V. COMMISSION/STAFF/LEGAL COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS-Discussion
Ray read the following item:

A. Review of compliance issue at 3635 Brown e regarding use of recreational vehicle
as a dwelling unit. Property is owned by Dohe,]\q\ ke; /ggsessor’s parcel #13-553-17.
/

Richard addressed the Chairman stating he negde imself from the board as he
had a bias on the issue. Richard stated he wo ) be plnln he public. Ray asked if he was
going to comment. Richard replied he was nnquireed that Richard excused himself
and a quorum still existed. Rayread a me %If as Chairman, to the board
regarding an inspection of Lykke's prope oﬁ overgber 24" and a recommendation. (See
Exhibit A) Ray asked if anyone on th ara had*aqy questions. There were none. Ray
asked if anyone in the public had any %Q%nts questions. Richard Brown approached
the table. Brown asked staff for a co ft i g ordinance. Betty produced a letter
sighting the ordinance. Dana left an acdm ce book. Brown quoted the language in
the letter—per Zoning Ordinance,] 050 Prohibited Uses lists recreational vehicles as a
permanent dwelling unit. Ray Ialned at the Building Department said that if he gets a
mounting permit and anchors own. the pad they would approve it. Brown stated that
whether or not the Building rtment.approves it, it is prohibited by the zoning ordinance
adding that if Mr. Lykke wan to hava@brdlnances changed then he can come follow the
process to have changed: Ray asked what the difference is between a recreational vehicle
being turned into a home and~a Ltratter. Brown stated it is a recreational vehicle. Ray stated
so is a trailer. Brown ;gpiémed ﬂqa:/%e trailer he raised his family in was a 14’ x 52' 1981
trailer that was broughtin on wheels, the wheels were taken off and it was set on runners and
blocks. Brown stated““thls isa 19 0 s travel trailer. Ray stated that it has no wheels. Brown
stated it does notfﬁa“tter asit was "built for recreational use. Ray explained it is sitting on
blocks on a ce pad. Brown told of how he has tried to explain to Lykke over the years
that the RV is grohtblted and’it has never moved. Brown explained there is a 14’ x 70’ trailer
sitting on his r6perty thatwas lived in before he moved into that property. Brown felt that
Lykke should reside in: tjq\}traller rather than have a prohibited use. Brown questioned where
the BuildipgQepartment and the RPC Chalrman have the nght to go out and decide that this

this whole thing ha peen a travesty since the start. Ray agreed Ray stated that this has
been going on for several years and was never reported. Brown stated that he doesn't
complain about the junk on the other side of his property but he does go down every couple of
years to ask if he can buy the old trailer on their property so he can haul it off. Brown stated
he doesn’'t want to file a nuisance complaint against his neighbors adding that what set it off
with Lykke is that he is doing other things that are not right such as having two fifth wheels
hooked up to the septic system at one point. Ray stated that the single wide is not habitable.
Brown asked when that happened. Ray stated it has leaks in the roof. Brown stated that is
not his problem adding that the last person to live in there was a young lady with a 6 month old
baby and it was habitable then. Brown questioned how the Lykke could have a guest room



RPC Minutes
12-10-09 Meeting
Page 3

and bathroom in the trailer if it is not habitable. Ray stated he has a washroom and a toilet in
the back of the shop. Brown questioned where he has it hooked up as there is only one
septic tank on the property and it is located too far away from the shop to have a toiiet hooked
up. Brown stated he knows where the septic tank is located as he installed it. Brown felt
that further investigation is necessary as Lykke could potentially have a bathroom not hooked
into a septic tank or a second septic tank on the property. Brown felt that this is just another
example of how out of compliance he is. Brown asked Ray if he noticed while up there that
Lykke has claimed property outside his lot as hisown. Brown told the board that he has posts
at the end of the road with a wire going be Brown felt there should be further
investigation. Ray told Brown to file his comptaint. ™8 stated he would. Ray stated this
is his recommendation and we are not getting anywkere/ Brown suggested bringing it to the
board for a vote. Ray stated we can doghat. en asked Brown if he was ready to do so
or would he like more investigation. Browg stat did not care but would like to have the
board act now and see where the chip& fall. ~Betty added that we do have a definition of
recreational vehicles also. Ray and'Rantasked\Betty what the definition for recreational
vehicleis. Betty read the descrip}ie-n\ofﬁaigcr ional vehicle as stated in section 17.16.750.
Betty then read the definition of {ke nufacturdd’or mobile home as stated in section

K A

17.16.605. Pam asked if Mr. L :e\\Q(oul'_g“‘ et those requirements. Betty stated that he is
in a recreational vehicle. Pam asked if thg grdinance stated he cannot have a recreational
vehicle as a permanent dwel&ganﬁ m& hat. Betty stated that a recreational vehicle
cannot be used as a permagnentdwelling. Ray asked if there were any other questions.
There were none. Ray a I;éd far amqtjon. Stephen stated he agreed with Brown as not
following regulations low&rsproperty values adding that Lykke has shown no inclination to do
anything no matter hoymany tinies people say something. Stephen felt that the codes
should be followed. ;e'phen th otioned that Lykke is simply out of compliance and
cannot be brought infg compliance with a recreational vehicle so we should reject this (the
Chairman'’s recommendations).and give him the circumstances of it. Ray asked if this was
clear enough. ly é’sked B if this was clear enough. Brown stated it was. Pam
seconded. Motjon passed wjth 1 naye vote by Ray. Joyce asked if he is able to fix the trailer
to make it livable: .Ray stategl he was going to have to now. Dana asked how this was to be
handled now;/are we going # ask him to comply and give him a timeline. Ray stated to tell
Lykke thaﬁecommena’ation by the Building Department and the Planning Commission

Chairman have "beenvdi's roved by the Planning Commission Board and he must comply with
the zoning as.per-Written. There was discussion on the timeframe. Stephen suggested

/3 bé&au%)of the holiday.

o

Richard rejdined the board. (5:48 pm)

B. Review of Rules, Policies, and Procedures of the Humboldt County Regional Planning
Commission.

Ray explained that on February 5, 2004 some of the language and rules were changed
and approved and it is time to review it again to see if any changes are necessary. Ray
began to read the intro and general policies of Rules Policies and Procedures of the Humboldt
County Regional Planning Commission. Ray stopped and asked if the board wanted to go
down line by line. Richard suggested going page by page. Ray agreed. Richard asked if
everyone had time to review the document. Richard then asked if anyone had any questions
onpage 1. There were none. Richard asked if there were any questions on page 2. There




RPC Minutes
12-10-09 Meeting
Page 4

were none. Richard asked if there was anything on page 3. Betty suggested a change on
page 3 item number 3 which states the RPC meets the first Thursday of each month when it
actually meets the second Thursday of each month. Ray stated this needs to be corrected as
it was changed for some of the members of the board or the meetings could go back to the first
Thursday of the month. Richard suggested striking ‘first Thursday’ and leaving it to state
‘shall meet once a month’. Richard also suggested changing the language stating when
specifically special meetings are to be held and what would warrant holding such a meeting.
Richard asked if everyone understood and agreed. There were sounds of agreement. Ray
suggested the language ‘meetings of the RPC will be held at least once a month. Meetings
will be tentatively scheduled the second Thursday of each month Any additional meetings will
be scheduled for the third Thursday of the mo necessary Stephen added ‘and only for
time sensitive issues’. Ray thought that it sho d. Betty agreed. Brown and

Pam thought the meetings should be chan st Fhursday and the special meetings
held on the third Thursday to allow time fQf natices:

ichard felt that item 6b on page 3
should be reviewed. Richard explained th ﬁéh spoke with Dana about this and
explained the process of agenda distri explained to the board that after 6
months is up a request to renew form i< y return the form and still want to receive
agendas they are put on the list for ano%: onths. Richard stated he understood that but
wanted to know if it is legal becauge~we areg soltsiting adding that he knows it is done out of
courtesy but wants to get some Ieéfclanf Z;t}zg onit so thatitis done per NRS. Dana stated
we could look into it. Betty asked ~they wa)u d her to see how the Clerk’s Office does it.
Richard just wanted some ciar} fic ion. “Righard asked if there were any other questions on
page 3. There were none. d then asked for questions on page 4. Richard was
concerned with number 14, Rlchar “statgd an item cannot be tabled unless the applicant
agrees toit. There was sclssion regarding the tabling process. Stephen suggested
changing the language t w1th\the licant’'s agreement the RPC can postpone action’.
Richard felt that was g sugge ‘the RPC is not required to take action on and may
postpone any item on e agenda Pam asked if the RPC is required to take action.

Richard stated that oncean item.js on the agenda the RPC is required to take action. Pam
felt the language sh'gui”d'read” S RPC is required to take action on, and may postpone any
item on the agen wlfh the ’appllcant s approval.’” Everyone agreed to the change to number
14. Betty addressed numb"ar 2 which states ‘The Chair shall vote on all matters’. Betty
explained that,iﬁ the Nevada Planner it states the Chair cannot make a motion but does not
address the QOndlng f a motion. Richard stated that in Roberts Rules of Order the
Chairman canrot makg;%v second a motion and should not vote unless it's a tie breaker.
Betty stated ‘that the RRZ is an advising board not a governing board therefore it is looked at
the th“irman can vote. Richard stated that the Chairman cannot make a
ested clarifying that. Richard agreed. Richard asked for anything else
sked if there needed to be any changes to the order of business. Richard
Il. Ray asked about page 5. Stephen asked about number 2 under
Procedure for sent Agenda ltems. Richard clarified that the Chairman asks the board if
they want to bring an item down then asks the public the same as they may wish to comment
on an application. (6:02 pm) Ray then read number 3 to clarify the procedure. Ray then
asked if there were any other concemns. There were none. Ray then asked if there were any
concerns with page 6. Richard expressed concern about having an applicant and an
opposed party to the applicant both at the chair. He felt that there should be language stating
that those addressing the board are to address the board not the audience/ public. There
was discussion regarding things that had happened in past meetings. There was discussion
on the difference between public commentary and public comment on an agenda item. Ray

differently a




RPC Minutes
12-10-09 Meeting
Page 5

read the top portion of the agenda regarding comments. Richard stated he did not agree with
it but legal put it on there. Ray stated that itis per NRS. Richard asked if there were any
more questions on public commentary. Betty suggested adding the step of closing
deliberation to include a motion and second to end deliberation and move on to decision in
order to aid in resolving confusion. Betty read the closing of deliberation as covered in the
Nevada Planner's Guide. Richard felt it was a good idea and asked where it would fit in.
Betty suggested after number 11 on page 6. Ray felt closing of deliberation should be
included as item b under number 11. Ray asked if they were done with page 6. Ray asked
about page 7. There were no comments on page 7. Ray asked about page 8. There were
no comments. Richard asked about page 9. Rayys ked how long we have to hold onto
tapes of the meetings. Betty stated they were to Be
should be changed. Betty stated that was NRS. Ric
desired but cannot keep them shorter. Ray fe th
stated they could be kept in a file cabinet. stated théywere. Dana stated they were
stacked by the year in the file drawer. There wasdjscdss®n regarding tapes verses CDs.
Richard asked if the CDs/tapes are for publj
be requested. There was discussion regardi th {fference between what is in the written
minutes verses audio recordings. Be:t%;t:dwf howng back and using the recordings to

clarify has been helpful in the past. ssion on keeping the CD’s for two years.
Betty asked the board if they wanted to ording from ‘in accordance with NRS
241.0354A’ to for two years’. The ana asked if they were wanted to get rid
of the old ones. Richard stated no s a storage issue. Dana stated there is
plenty of room; and noted that th un issioner’s audio is gone after 1 year. Dana
told the board that she has audi i back 2006 and does not plan to destroy any
recordings. Richard felt that b use %lkes to refer to NRS that maybe the wording on

number 4 should be *...in accgtgance-with"NRS 241.0354A plus 1 year. Betty questioned
keeping the audio tapes as e ;:nay sSoO no longer be a machine to listen to it. Stephen
asked how long ago the au wentto CD. Dana told him in 2007 the change was made.
There was discussion re aFcung keeping CDs that are associated with controversial issues.
(6:26 pm) Stephen aske Members uld motion to keep copies of the CD’s to any particular
decision made by the b ard:.. _Richaxd stated that everything should be read into record that
way it would be in print noten th‘e . Betty stated a motion could work as staff cannot write
everything down ver tlm S n felt that a record of the whole meeting could exist
without having to tr, hbe ftikthe CD’s were kept. Ray stated the transcription is the other
party’s responsibil{ty™mot- the% d’s. Richard agreed. Dana stated there is a difference
between doing the mimuté a transcription, adding that she is not certified to do
transcriptions b@utd g more detail with the minutes if the board wanted. Richard

stated the mig:eﬁ are |

kept—so the egng&@ t have to be transcribed but could be if requested. Richard stated
he was having a h: understanding why the RPC would want to do that because the
CDs would be kept for two years. Dana stated the written record is required to be kept for
sometime, microfilmed minutes go back to the 1970’s. Richard stated they are minutes not
transcriptions of the meetings. Stephen felt that if a copy of the CDs were made there would
be no questions. Pam felt this could work for or against you. Richard agreed. Pam stated
that if it only has to be kept for a year, then it should only be kept for a year. Richard wanted
to speak about motions. Stephen asked if a motion could be made to keep the CDs.
Richard moved on to state that he felt motions should be made in the positive and gave an
example. Ray asked about a situation where someone wanted to motion to not approve
something. Richard explained that if someone motioned to approve and a second is not

fine. Joyce agreed. Stephen felt this is why the CDs should be




